
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
11 April 2018 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL to be held on Thursday 19 April 2018 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Executive Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To note any apologies. 
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 
2018 (previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 8 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA:  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 

Public Document Pack



6.   43 DIGSWELL PARK ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7NW - 
6/2017/2870/EM - REMOVE SILVER BIRCH AND REPLACE WITH SMALLER 
VARIETY  (Pages 3 - 16) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for a 
removal of a Silver birch tree. 
 

7.   UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF 
THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME  (Pages 17 - 32) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) to 
update Panel Members with regard to the arbitration cases that were put before 
the Panel on 15 February 2018. 
 

8.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION:  
 

9.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 10 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Paragraphs 5 (privileged and legal advice) and 6 (statutory 
notice or order) Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 
 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
PART II 

 

10.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Glick (Chairman) 

J.Beckerman 
M.Birleson 
A.Chesterman 
 

M.Cowan 
T.Mitchinson 
F.Thomson 
 

  M.Perkins (Executive Member for Planning, Housing and 
 Community) 

 Executive Board 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact 
Gurdip Paddan 01707 357349  democracy@welhat.gov.uk, Governance Services 
Unit on 01707 357349 or email – g.paddan@welhat.gov.uk 



Part I 

Executive Member: Councillor Perkins 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL – 19 APRIL 2018 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
6/2017/2870/EM 

43 Digswell Park Road, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7NW 

REMOVE SILVER BIRCH AND REPLACE WITH SMALLER VARIETY SUCH AS 

AMELANCHIER TREE OR MAGNOLIA TREE 

APPLICANT: Mr C. Dolman 

(Sherrards) 

 

1. Background 

1.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for a 

removal of a Silver birch tree. The application (reference:6/2017/2870/EM) was 

refused on the 20 February 2018 for the following reason: 

“The work request is inappropriate and would result in the loss of landscaping 

that would harm the character and amenities of the area; contrary to Policy 

EM3 (Soft Landscaping) of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management 

Scheme..” 

 

2. Site Description 

2.1. The tree in question is a semi-mature silver growing within the front garden of 

43 Digswell Park Road Welwyn Garden City. 

2.2. Digswell Park Road is a minor residential road. The northeast end of the road 

consists of grass verges with trees, mainly silver birch, within the back verge or 

front gardens. The silver birches form part of the character of the area and are 

an intentional planting choice along this section of road.. 

3. The Proposal 

3.1. The proposal seeks consent for the removal of the silver birch to be replaced 

with a smaller species of tree such as magnolia. 

4. Relevant Estate Management History 

4.1. Application Number: N6/2010/2874/TE Decision: Granted Decision Date: 

07 January 2011 Proposal: Fell Norway Spruce tree and replace with Rowan 

tree. 

4.2. Application Number W6/2013/0633/TE Decision: Granted Decision Date: 

09 May 2013 Proposal: Removal of Ash tree from front garden 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



4.3. Application Number W6/2013/0723/TE  Decision: Refused  Decision Date: 

20 may 2013 Proposal; Removal of Silver Birch located in front garden 

4.4. Application Number; W6/2013/0723/TE Decision; Granted Decision Dare: 

23 October 2013 Proposal: Extension to hardstanding and works to tree in 

front garden. 

5. Policy 

5.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008) 

EM3 – Soft Landscaping 

6. Representations Received 

6.1. No representations have been received. 

7. Discussion 

7.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent. The 

appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1, and the original officer’s 

report for application referenced 6/2017/2870, is attached at Appendix 2. 

7.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the tree 

removal on the landscape and whether the reasons for removal justify its 

removal. 

7.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and 

in order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate 

Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme 

and its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes 

are kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town.  

7.4. Policy EM3 of the Estate Management Scheme applies and refers to soft 

landscaping. It states that works to trees and hedges will only be allowed where 

the works would not result in the loss of landscaping which would harm the 

character and amenities of the area and where sufficient justification for the 

works has been given or there are other considerations that apply.  

7.5. The appellant has divided their comments into five points which are addressed 

below. 

7.6. The first point made is that the roots are undermining the block paved drive. 

The appellant has supplied photographs showing the driveway. The 

photograph shows some very minor disruption to some of the blocks. Although 

it is possible the roots could affect the driveway the slight movement of the 

drive is not considered sufficient to warrant removal of the tree. 

7.7. The second point is that the tree roots are growing into the drains. No evidence 

has been supplied to indicate that the roots are damaging the drain. 

7.8. The third point is that all the other silver birch trees along the road are planted 

within council maintained land and that this tree was planted by the previous 

Page 4



owner. It is not possible to verify the age of the tree or why it was originally 

planted, however it is in keeping with planting along the road and contributes to 

the line of silver birches and character of the area.  

7.9. The fourth point states that the tree is very close to the main front window of the 

living room and blocks light. The tree has been reduced in the past and the 

resident is concerned about the ongoing cost of reducing the tree on a regular 

basis. Although located with the front garden the tree is in a similar position and 

distance from the front of the house as those in the Council maintained land. 

The tree will affect light to the property however silver birch as a species 

generally have a thin crown which allow some light to penetrate. When light 

levels are low in winter the tree will have lost its leaf which will allow more light 

to reach the property.  With regard to the cost of maintenance the council does 

not contribute to the cost of private tree work.  

7.10. The fifth point states that neighbours either side of the property would like the 

tree removed due to a constant shedding of seedlings. The council does not 

allow removal of trees for natural phenomena as this a minor seasonal 

disruption and does not justify removal of the tree. 

8. Conclusion 

8.1. The proposed removal of the silver birch from the street scene, would result in 

an inappropriate loss of landscaping that would harm the character and 

amenities of the area; contrary to Policy EM3 (Soft Landscaping) of the Welwyn 

Garden City Estate Management Scheme. No additional evidence or 

information has been put forward by the appellant which adds to or would alter 

officer’s recommendation.  

9. Recommendation 

9.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal. 

 

Oliver Waring (Tree Officer) 

Date: 26 March 2018 

 

Background papers: 

Appendix 1: Appellants grounds of appeal 

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Emma Graham 

From: DOLMAN CARL  

Sent: 23 March 2018 09:05 

To: Planning 

Subject: Re: Planning Application 6/2017/2870/EM - 43 Digswell Park Road Welwyn Garden  

City AL8 7NW 

WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening 

attachments or clicking links.  

.  

Having to re-send in 2 parts as not delivered due to size of attachments: Part 1 of 2 - Photos 1-4 

On 23 March 2018 at 08:38 DOLMAN CARL  wrote:  

Dear Planning Department, 

I would like to appeal against refused planning application number 6/2017/2870/EM. 

The silver birch tree you are refusing to grant permission to replace with a smaller more front garden 

appropriate one is causing a number of issues: 

1) Surface roots are undermining my block paved drive laid in Nov 2013 - see attached photos.  Are the 

council prepared to pay for it to be relaid?  It will need to be relaid every 3-4 years with the tree not 

removed 

2) The roots are also growing into the drain on the drive  

3) All the other silver birch trees planted in Digswell park road were planted by the council on 

councilowned/maintained land - the tree in my front garden was planted by the previous owner and had 

he planted any other tree not matching the councils planting scheme I would have been allowed to 

replace it (as I did with the black pine in my back garden in 2005 as the roots were undermining the 

extension being built) 

4) The tree grows rapidly and is very close to the main front window of the living room and blocks light 

hence why it was allowed to be reduced in size by the council 4 years ago - this needs doing every 2-3 

years but costs hundreds of pounds in tree-surgery bills - are the council prepared to pay my tree related 

bills if it is not removed? 

5) My neighbours on both sides (No. 41 and No. 45) would both like to see the tree gone as the constant 

shedding of seedlings is a nuisance which pervades their cars and their houses (and indeed ours) Please 

reconsider your decision 

kind regards 

Page 7



1 

Carl Dolman  

On 20 February 2018 at 14:40 Ida Moesner <i.moesner@welhat.gov.uk> wrote:  

Please see the attached Decision Notice 

Kind regards 

Ida Moesner 

Planning Support Officer 

Welwyn Hatfield Council 

Welwyn Garden City 

AL8 6AE 

Tel No - 01707 357516 

Email – i.moesner@welhat.gov.uk 

---------------------------------------------- 

www.welhat.gov.uk <http://www.welhat.gov.uk/>  

www.facebook.com/welwynhatfield <http://www.facebook.com/welwynhatfield> 

www.twitter.com/welhatCouncil <http://www.twitter.com/welhatCouncil>  

Please consider the environment before printing this email. 

You can report missed bins, abandoned vehicles, fly-tipping, litter, graffiti and flyposting as well as tell us 

about problems with litter and dog bins Online. The information in this email is intended for the named 

recipients only. It may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless 

the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this email and your reply cannot be 

guaranteed.  

This email and any attachments may contain confidential information and intellectual property (including 

copyright material). It is only for the use of the addressee(s) in accordance with any instructions contained 

within it. Please treat any personal and sensitivity data that may be contained within this email in 

accordance with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998 (the Act). Such data should only be 

processed and retained where there is a legitimate need to do so. Should you have a legitimate need to share 

this information please make the recipient aware of their responsibilities for handling this data in accordance 

with the Act. If you are not the addressee, you are prohibited from copying, forwarding, disclosing, saving 

or otherwise using it in any way. If you receive this email in error, please immediately advise the sender and 

delete it. Sopra Steria may monitor the content of emails within Welwyn Hatfield Council?s network to 

ensure compliance with the Council?s policies and procedures. Emails are susceptible to alteration and their 

integrity (including origin) cannot be assured. Welwyn Hatfield Council and Steria shall not be liable for 

any modification to a message, or for messages falsely sent. 2 

Page 8



  

  

 

Page 9



 

  

  

Page 10



 

  

  

Page 11



 

  

  

  

  

Page 12



 
 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE 
 

DELEGATED APPLICATION 
 
 
Application No:  6/2017/2870/EM 
Location:  43 Digswell Park Road Welwyn Garden City AL8 7NW 
Proposal: Remove Silver Birch tree and replace with smaller variety such as 

Amelanchier tree or Magnolia tree 
Officer:    Mr Oliver Waring 
 
Recommendation: Refused 
 
6/2017/2870/EM  
Context 

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967 

Relevant Estate 
Management 
history 

Planning 

 

Application Number: N6/2010/2874/TE Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 07 January 2011 

Proposal: Fell Norway Spruce tree and replace with Rowan tree 

 

Application Number: W6/2013/0633/TE Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 09 May 2013 

Proposal: Removal of Ash tree from front garden 

 

Application Number: W6/2013/0723/TE Decision: Refused Decision 
Date: 20 May 2013 

Proposal: Removal of Silver Birch tree located in front garden 

 

Application Number: W6/2013/1110/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 23 October 2013 

Proposal: Extension to hardstanding and works to tree in front garden 

 

 

Consultations 

Neighbour 
representations 

Support:  0 Object:  0 Other:  0 

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses 

 

Page 13



2 of 3 

Consultees and 
responses 

1. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - Councillor Jon Beckerman  

2. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - Councillor Patricia Mabbott  

3. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - Councillor Harry Bower  

Relevant Policies       Policy EM3 – Soft Landscaping 

Main Issues 

Appropriateness 
of the works in 
relation to the 
tree(s) 

The tree in question is a semi-mature silver birch tree approximately 8m tall 
growing within the front garden of 43 Digswell Park Road. This is a prominent 
tree easily seen from the main road and public footpath. The tree is indicative 
of the area and there are several silver birch trees planted within front gardens 
in along Digswell Park Road. 
 
The applicant wishes to remove the tree as it blocks light to the front and there 
are concerns regarding damage to the drive and the drain system.  
 
The applicant has not supplied any evidence of damage to the drains and any 
disruption to the drive is minimal. 
 
Given that the tree contributes to the amenity and character of the area the 
reasons given are not considered sufficient to justify removal of the tree. 
 
In light of the above I recommend the application be refused. 
 

Conclusion 

The work request is inappropriate and would result in the loss of landscaping that would harm the 
character and amenities of the area; contrary to Policy EM3 (Soft Landscaping) of the Welwyn 
Garden City Estate Management Scheme. 
 

 
Reasons for Refusal:  
 
1. The work request is inappropriate and would result in the loss of landscaping that 

would harm the character and amenities of the area; contrary to Policy EM3 (Soft 
Landscaping) of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme 

 
REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS 
 
2. 

Plan 
Number 

Revision 
Number 

Details Received Date 

Tree Sketch 1 Tree Sketch 11 December 2017 
 
Determined By: 
 
Mr Chris Carter 
9 February 2018 

Page 14



3 of 3 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Bright Owusu 
Executive Member: Councillor M 
Perkins 
 
Haldens, Handside, Hollybush, 
Howlands, Panshanger, Peartree 
and Sherrards Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME APPEAL PANEL – 19TH APRIL 2018 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF THE MANAGEMENT 
SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES OF THAT SCHEME 

 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report is to update Panel Members with regard to outstanding arbitration 
cases that have been put before the Panel, up to and including, on 15th 
February 2018.  

1.2 A brief update on each property can be found in section 3 below.  

1.3 List of cases recommended for arbitration can be found at section 4 below 

1.4 Additional cases will be presented at the next Panel meeting 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That Members: 

 Note the contents of the report.  

 Authorise c closure of 31 Sandpit Lane 

 Authorise the Head of Planning to take 37 Linfield to arbitration 

 Agree for further case(s) to be presented to the next Panel meeting 
for Members’ consideration. 

 

 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

3 Individual Cases 

3.1 73 Walnut Grove  

Picture 1 Before 

 

Picture 2: As of 06/11/2017 

 
 
Nature and date of breach: Formation of hardstanding in front garden, date 
unknown but reported in June 2012.  

Background information: A 100% concrete hardstanding has been formed 
in the front garden.  Although it is not entirely clear when the work was 
completed, the request for investigation was received in June 2012.  
 
A retrospective application 6/2016/1536/EM for the retention of an amended 
scheme of hardstanding was approved on 20/03/2017 with a condition that 
the approved scheme be implemented within 6 months of approval.  

Page 18



Owner was contacted in October following a compliance site visit which 
showed the approved scheme has not been implemented.  

In response the owner claimed the 6 months condition might have been 
overlooked and thought they had 3 years to complete the work. They 
undertook to commence work immediately. Latest correspondence on the 6th 
of November 2017 indicate work is in progress (please see picture 2 above) 
and plants for the soft landscaping and front hedge are being ordered. 

Update: Site visit on 27th March 2018 shows that the works have not been 
completed. A request for update on works have been sent to the owner. 
Owner has responded to advice works stalled temporarily owing to ill health 
and recent unfavourable weather conditions. It hoped that works will resume 
in the coming weeks as the weather improves. 

The Enforcement team will continue to monitor implementation with a view to 
recommend the case for closure on satisfactory completion. 

 

  

Page 19



3.2 251 Knightsfield  

 

Nature and date of breach: Erection of single storey rear extension without 
Estate Management Consent; commenced June 2013.   

Background information: Officers attended the site at an early stage of 
construction and advised the owner of the need for EM consent for the 
extension.  At that stage footings had only been dug.  However the owner 
chose to continue with the construction.  A retrospective application for EM 
consent was submitted in June 2013 under application number 
W6/2013/1237/EM but the submitted plans did not reflect the development as 
built.  The application was, in any event, refused consent in October 2014.  
 
The owner has declined to participate in the arbitration process and has opted 
to carry out works to address the concerns raised against the development. 
They have been advised the only way forward is to replace the roof lantern 
with a flat roof light and to reduce the height of the parapet wall, on all sides, 
to the level proposed under refused application 6/2016/1303/EM.   

The Owner has confirmed via e-mail on 15th January 2018 that an architect 
has been commissioned to prepare the necessary drawings for a revised 
scheme to be submitted to the panel for consideration.  

Update: In the course of discussion However it was discovered the applicant 
still had the drawings from the above application and still had not exhausted 
her chance of appealing against the refusal. Officer’s report was supportive at 
least in principle of the proposal under W6/2013/1237/EM. Thus an appeal 
was considered a pragmatic option. 

Appeal against refusal of W6/2013/1237/EM has therefore been submitted 
and currently going through validation.   

Page 20



31 Sandpit Road  
Before: 

 

After:  

 

Nature and date of breach: Removal of front hedge and creation of 
hardstanding; date of breach unknown but reported in January 2014. 

Background Information: The established hedges to the front of the above 
site were removed and the complete front garden has been turned into a 
hardstanding without Estate Management Consent. There are no other such 
examples of significant hardstandings within the area in which front hedges 
predominate the streetscene. A retrospective application for EM consent was 
submitted under application number W6/2014/0888/EM, which was refused 
on 30th July 2014. 

The owner has since returned part of the front garden to soft landscape. 
Panel members were satisfied with the implemented soft landscaping but 
requested further information regarding the type of soft landscaping that had 
been planted along the front boundary. A landscape officer has since 

Page 21



assessed the site and considers that the planting along the front boundary is 
ornamental shrubs, probably quite small and with a neat form. 

Following clarification on the nature of soft landscaping implemented at the 
site and in particular along the front boundary, members expressed 
dissatisfaction with the front boundary treatment.  A more suitable hedge is 
required for the front boundary treatment. The owner has been contacted with 
regards to the requirement for a front hedge to be reinstated and was given 
up to the end of March 2018 to carry out the planting.  

The owner contacted the enforcement officer in February 2018 to find out 
what type of hedge should be planted was directed to liaise with the council’s 
landscape officer for expert advice/guidance.  

Update: The owner has sent evidence that a privet hedge has been planted. 
The Council’s Landscape officer is happy with the choice of hedge as there 
are other privet hedges on the street. 

Authorisation is therefore sought to close the enforcement case. Notification 
of closure will contain an informative highlighting the need for the prospective 
new owner of the property to nurture the hedge.  

  

Page 22



3.3 72 Chequers 

 

Nature and date of breach: Removal of front hedge and creation of 
hardstanding; date of breach unknown but reported in August 2012. 

Background information: The established hedges to the front of the above 
site were removed and the complete front garden has been turned into a 
hardstanding without Estate Management Consent.  There are no other such 
examples of significant hardstandings within the area in which front hedges 
predominate the streetscene. A retrospective application for EM consent was 
submitted under application number W6/2012/1899/EM, which was refused 
on 18th December 2012.  

A letter was sent to the owner on 27th July 2016 and a response was received 
on 10th August 2016 explaining why the work had been carried out. The owner 
stated that she works from home and due to on-street parking pressure due to 
Burrowfelds Industrial Estate and the rise in car ownership in recent years, the 
hardstanding provides a parking area.  

Update: This case was approved to be taken to arbitration as a test case for 
hardstanding in place 26 the Croft. However following an invitation to the 
owner to participate in the arbitration process, the owner has decided to 
negotiate a solution with the Council. A meeting was held on 27th November 
to discuss a way forward. The owner has agreed to re-instate the front hedge 
and replace 50% of the front garden (excluding the area in front of the garage) 
with soft landscaping. On 29th December 2017 a retrospective application for 
the scheme was submitted to the council for consideration albeit currently 
invalid (the applicant has requested for extra time to submit the required 
information). 

The applicant has failed to submit the requisite information to validate the 
application despite being given the benefit of time extensions. Consequently 
the application was withdrawn on the 16th of March 2018. 

Page 23



An application is to be made by end of April 2018 to the President of the 
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors to appoint an arbitrator to determine 
the case in accordance with paragraph 8 of the Management Scheme for 
Welwyn Garden City. 

3.4 19 Fearnley Road  

 

Nature and date of breach: extension to driveway to form 100% 
hardstanding in front garden and the removal of front boundary hedge; date of 
breach unknown but reported in April 2016. 

Background information: There used to be hardstanding with space for one 
vehicle and the remaining area was soft landscaping. A retrospective 
application for EM consent was submitted under application number 
6/2016/1603/EM, which was refused on 28th September 2016. An appeal was 
heard by the Panel on 26th January 2017 where the decision was upheld and 
appeal dismissed. 

Update: The applicant has tentatively agreed a modified scheme comprising 
of approximately 47% soft landscaping to be submitted to the Council for 
consideration. Submission of a revised scheme for consideration is awaited. 

Enforcement officer has sent a further chaser e-mail on 24th January 2018 
with a threat of formal action in an attempt to speed up the process.  

Final warning letter detailing requirement for remedying the breach was sent 
on 29th March 2018 with a 28 day deadline for an application to be submitted 
failing which formal enforcement action could ensue.  

  

Page 24



3.5 56 Broomhills 

 

Nature and date of breach: Removal of front hedge and formation of 
hardstanding; date of breach unknown but reported in February 2016. 

Background information: A retrospective application for EM consent was 
submitted under application number W6/2015/0739/EM but was refused on 5th 
May 2017.  A subsequent appeal was heard by the Panel on 15th June 2017 
where the decision was upheld and appeal dismissed. 

The applicant was advised to modify the scheme to include reinstating the 
front hedge. The enforcement officer is currently in contact with the applicant 
with a view to speeding up submission of a revised scheme for consideration 
by the Council. Latest response indicate a hedge, matching the neighbours’ 
will be planted by March 2018.  

Update: Awaiting confirmation from the owner that the hedge has been 
planted. It has however not been possible to confirm if the hedge has been 
planted as the case officer got injured during the Easter break. It is anticipated 
that a site visit would have been undertaken before, and members would be 
update at, the next Panel meeting. 

  

Page 25



3.6 11 The Moors 

 

 

 

Nature and date of breach: Erection of single storey rear extension that was 
reported in August 2016. The dimensions of the rear extension are 
approximately 6.4m deep, 2.23m to the eaves and 4.85m wide. 

Background information: A retrospective application for EM permission was 
eventually submitted under application number 6/2017/1557/EM in July 2017 
however it has remained invalid ever since.  

The owner was advised that it was considered unlikely that EM consent would 
be granted due to the depth of the rear extension and was advised to submit 
an application that proposed alterations e.g. reducing the depth so that it 
could be looked upon more favourably.  

Page 26



The applicant has been chased several times by the enforcement officer and 
the Planning Support officer to provide the additional documents to validate 
the above retrospective application.  However, to date, those details have not 
been submitted. In any event the application seeks to retain the extension as 
is currently built.  

Following failure to submit the requisite information to validate the application 
the department withdrew the application on 26th September 2017. 
Authorisation was therefore sought for the Head of Planning to refer the 
matter to be determined by an arbitrator appointed by the President of the 
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors in accordance with paragraph 8 of the 
Management Scheme for Welwyn Garden City. 

Following authorisation by the panel in October 2017, a letter was sent to the 
owner on 23rd November 2017 with an invitation to participate in the 
arbitration process to resolve the dispute.  

The owner however indicated unwillingness to participate in the arbitration 
process and has informed the team via e-mail on 20th December 2017 that an 
Architect has been commissioned to prepare a new scheme for submission to 
the council for consideration.  

Update: A householder application (reference 6/2018/0372/HOUSE) and a 
retrospective Estate Management application (reference 6/2018/0397/EM) 
have been submitted for the retention of the rear extension. The decisions for 
both applications are due on 9th April 2018. 

  

Page 27



3.7 88 Pentley Park  
 

 

Nature and date of breach: New raised beds, steps and walls and 
hardstanding to the front of the property. Exact date of breach is unknown but 
complaint was received on 11th April 2016. 

Background information: Following warning letters, a retrospective 
application for retention of the works was submitted on 11th May 2016 but was 
refused on 7th July 2016. Following the refusal, the owners have so far 
ignored correspondence requiring the reinstatement of the front garden and 
have not taken up the option to appeal the decision to refuse consent for the 
retention of the works. 

Update: Following notification of the authorisation by the Panel on 15th 
February 2018 to take the case to arbitration, the owner has contacted the 
case officer indicating a desire to avoid arbitration. They have requested 
details of what could be done to avoid arbitration.  

Details of recommended remediation works have been sent to them on 29th 
March 2018 with a requirement to submit an application for the works within 
28 days or risk arbitration process commencing without further warning. Either 
way they, to notify the case officer of their preferred option within 14 days of 
the letter. 

  

Page 28



3.8 3 Digswell House Mews  

 

Background information: The enforcement team were notified that a 
retrospective Estate Management application for a roof light on the front roof 
slope had been refused permission. The owner was contacted and the 
enforcement team were advised that an appeal would be submitted. The 
appeal was heard at the Panel meeting in October 2017 and the Panel 
dismissed the appeal. 

  
Update: The rooflight is still in situ despite the owner being aware that the 
Panel had dismissed the appeal as well as contact from the enforcement 
team requiring the removal of the rooflight.  

Following notification of authorization to take this case to arbitration, the agent 
acting on the owner’s behalf contacted the enforcement officer in February 
2018 and confirmed that the roof light will be moved to the rear roofslope 
subject to an application being approved. Discussions are taking place to 
confirm a deadline for the work to take place. 

  

Page 29



4 New cases for arbitration 

4.1  37 Linkfield 

 

Nature and date of breach: Installation of solar photovoltaic panels to the 
front and rear roof slopes of the property. Exact date of breach is unknown but 
a report of the breach was received on 11th January 2017. 

Background information: Following a site visit the owner was contacted 
advising action in regard to the solar panels particularly the ones located on 
the front roof slope of the property which the owner was advised were unlikely 
to be granted estate management permission. The enforcement team was 
contacted by the owner who advised that a retrospective estate management 
application would be submitted to try and retain the panels on both the front 
and rear roof slopes. 
 
Invalid estate management applications have been received however the 
owner has been unsuccessful in providing the required documents for an 
application to be validated for formal determination by the Local Planning 
Authority and as such these applications have subsequently been withdrawn 
by the Planning Support Team. The solar panels are still in situ despite the 
owner being advised that the solar photovoltaic panels were required to be 
removed or a valid Estate Management Application submitted. 
  
Recommendation: That the Head of Planning be authorised to refer the 
matter to be determined by an arbitrator appointed by the President of the 
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors in accordance with paragraph 8 of the 
Management Scheme for Welwyn Garden City. 

  

Page 30



5 Equality and Diversity 

5.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out 
in connection with the proposals that are set out in this report. 

 
Name of author Bright Owusu  
Title Principal Planning Enforcement Officer 
Date 5th April 2018 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 43 DIGSWELL PARK ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7NW - 6/2017/2870/EM - REMOVE SILVER BIRCH AND REPLACE WITH SMALLER VARIETY
	06a - Appeal Statement 43 Disgwell Park Road_redacted
	06b - Officer report 43 Digswell Park Road

	7 UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME

